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March 24, 2008 
 
 

EX PARTE  
 
Ms. Marlene H. Dortch 
Secretary 
Federal Communications Commission 
445 12th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20554 
 
 
  Re:  EB-08-MD-002 
 
 
Dear Ms. Dortch: 
 
 COMPTEL is extremely concerned about the retention marketing techniques detailed in 
the above-captioned complaint proceeding that Verizon is using throughout its service territory.  
Verizon has candidly admitted that it is using information generated by the Local Service 
Requests (“LSRs”) submitted by competing carriers to port the customers’ telephone numbers to 
the new carrier to initiate contact with those customers in an effort to convince them to stay with 
Verizon.1  Verizon makes these contacts after it receives an LSR from a competing carrier 
canceling the customer’s Verizon service, but before Verizon actually disconnects the customer’s 
service.2  According to Verizon, it “has tried different approaches to contacting its disconnecting 
customers, but the predominant approach has been the use of direct mail that urges the customer 
to contact Verizon.”3

 
    
 
 

                                                 
1  Verizon’s Answer to Complaint at ¶¶ 10-29. 
 
2  Id. at p. 1. 
 
3  Id. at ¶ 31. 
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Section 222(b) of the Communications Act, 47 U.S.C. §222(b), as it has long been 
interpreted by the Commission, expressly prohibits the type of retention marketing in which 
Verizon is engaged.4  Verizon becomes aware that a customer is planning to switch to a new 
service provider due solely to its position as the provider executing the carrier change request 
and it becomes privy to the details of that switch from the submitting carrier’s LSR.5  The 
Commission has repeatedly confirmed that a carrier change request is carrier proprietary 
information protected by Section 222(b) because the request must be submitted to the executing 
carrier in order to effectuate the disconnect of the customer’s existing service and the transfer to 
the new carrier.6  Where a carrier exploits advance notice of a customer change by virtue of its 
status as the underlying service provider to market to that customer, it does so in violation of 
Section 222(b).7  There is no merit to Verizon’s contention that the Commission’s prohibition on 
an underlying service provider’s use of advance notice of a customer change request to try and 
convince the customer to stay applies only to wholesale service providers.8  Verizon is the 
underlying service provider to the customer that has chosen a new provider.  It is only by virtue 
of its status as the customer’s current service provider that it receives the advance notice of the 
disconnect order from the new carrier.  
 

Although Section 222(b) flatly outlaws the use of carrier proprietary information for 
marketing purposes, including the advance notice Verizon receives as executing carrier of the 
customer’s request to disconnect service and port the telephone number to a new carrier, 
Verizon’s retention marketing efforts are triggered as soon as notice of the customer’s request to 
disconnect service is transmitted from Verizon’s wholesale arm to its retail arm.9  Verizon 
argues that the Commission should sanction its retention marketing program because it “provides 
concrete consumer benefits and intensifies competition for mass-market customers.”10   Verizon 
represents that in its efforts to retain customers, it provides consumers not only with information 

 
4  See e.g., Implementation of the Subscriber Carrier Selection Changes Provisions of the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, CC Docket No. 94-129, Third Order on Reconsideration and 
Second Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, 18 FCC Rcd 5099 (2003) at ¶28 (“Executing 
carriers may not at any time in the carrier marketing process rely on specific information they 
obtained from submitting carriers due solely to their positions as executing carriers.”)   
 
5  Verizon Answer to Complaint at ¶¶ 12, 19. 
 
6  See e.g., Implementation of the Subscriber Carrier Selection Changes Provisions of the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, Second Report and Order and Further Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking, 14 FCC Rcd 1508 (1998) at ¶99. 
 
7  See Implementation of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, CC Docket 96-115, Order on 
Reconsideration and Petition for Forbearance, 14 FCC Rcd 14409 (1999) at ¶77. 
      
8  Verizon’s Answer at 51. 
 
9  Verizon Answer to Complaint at ¶¶ 20, 28-29. 
 
10  Verizon Answer to Complaint at p. 37. 
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about its services that they may not have been aware of when they decided to go with another 
provider, but also “substantial benefits in the form of monetary incentives to remain with 
Verizon.”11   Verizon’s “pro-consumer” argument, however, does not legitimize its conduct.   If 
Verizon’s customers are unaware of the services it offers and are therefore not in a position to 
weigh the value of Verizon’s services against the offerings of a competitor, Verizon has only 
itself to blame.  Verizon’s failure to upsell its customers before they are lured away by a 
competitor does not excuse its violation of the statute.  Moreover, any consumer benefits, 
financial or otherwise, that Verizon wants to convey can be offered to customers, consistent with 
the Commission’s rules, when it attempts to win the customers back after their service with 
Verizon has been disconnected.  Engaging in such conduct between the time it receives from the 
new carrier the LSR to disconnect the customer’s service and port the customer’s number and the 
time the disconnect and port are complete, however, is highly anticompetitive because Verizon 
acts based on the equivalent of “inside information.”12    
 

Under no circumstances can a credible claim be made that either competition or 
consumers are disadvantaged by the Commission’s narrowly tailored restrictions on retention 
marketing.  On the contrary, the Commission has correctly determined that the substantial 
interest of consumers in a competitive and fair marketplace is undermined and “competition is 
harmed if any carrier uses carrier-to-carrier information, such as switch or PIC orders, to trigger 
retention marketing campaigns.”13  Whenever a new service provider must notify the old service 
provider to terminate service and coordinate porting of the customer’s number, allowing the old 
service provider to covertly use that advance notice to convince the customer to stay unfairly tilts 
the playing field and makes a mockery of the duty imposed on all telecommunications carriers 
by Section 222 to safeguard the confidentiality of the carrier proprietary information set forth in 
an LSR.   
        

Respectfully submitted, 
 
           
 
        Mary C. Albert 

 
11  Id.  at ¶ 40. 
 
12   See e.g., Implementation of the Subscriber Carrier Selection Changes Provisions of the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, Second Report and Order and Further Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking, 14 FCC Rcd 1508 (1998) at ¶ 106 (it is a violation of Section 222(b) for a carrier 
executing a carrier change request to send “a subscriber who has chosen a new carrier a 
promotional letter (winback letter) in an attempt to change the subscriber’s decision to switch to 
another carrier.”). 
  
13  See Implementation of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, CC Docket 96-115, Order on 
Reconsideration and Petition for Forbearance, 14 FCC Rcd 14409 (1999) at ¶83 and ¶76 
(emphasis in the original). 
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